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Item 5. Other Events and Required FD Disclosure.

On August 16, 2004, Security Capital Corporation announced that it received a letter (the _Increased Offer Letter ) from Brian D. Fitzgerald, a
representative of Security Capital Corporation s majority stockholder, CP Acquisition, L.P. No. 1, making a revised offer at a price per share of
$9.65. The revised offer described above increases the price from the $9.50 per share offer previously announced on July 28, 2004. The
foregoing description of the Increased Offer Letter is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Increased Offer Letter, which is
attached as Exhibit 99.1 hereto, and is incorporated herein by reference.

The decision as to whether to proceed with the above-described proposal will depend on whether Mr. Fitzgerald, CP Acquisition, L.P. No. 1 and
certain of their affiliates can agree with Security Capital Corporation on the terms and conditions of a definitive merger agreement and whether
the conditions to closing to be set forth in any such agreement are satisfied.

Security Capital Corporation also announced that it is aware of an additional complaint filed naming Security Capital Corporation, each member
of its board of directors and CP Acquisition, L.P. No. 1 relating to the proposed acquisition described above. This complaint is in addition to the
two complaints previously announced on July 28, 2004.

A copy of the press release is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2 and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. Financial Statements, Pro Forma Financial Information and Exhibits.
(c) Exhibits.
99.1 Offer Letter, dated August 13, 2004, from Brian D. Fitzgerald to Security Capital
Corporation.
99.2 Press Release of Security Capital Corporation, dated August 16, 2004.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 17, 2004

By: /s/ Brian D. Fitzgerald

Name: Brian D. Fitzgerald
Title: Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief

Executive Officer
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Exhibit No. Description
99.1 Offer Letter, dated August 13, 2004, from Brian D. Fitzgerald to Security Capital Corporation.
99.2 Press Release of Security Capital Corporation, dated August 16, 2004.
4

01pt;">Table of Contents

Provision for loan losses (net of recoveries) totaled $3.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, and $15.7 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2012. At June 30, 2013, we performed an evaluation of our loan portfolio and determined that the fair value of the underlying
collateral securing two impaired loans with an aggregate carrying value of $26.6 million was less than the net carrying value of the loans,
resulting in us recording an additional $4.0 million provision for loan losses. We also recorded a $0.7 million of recoveries of previously
recorded loan loss reserves in the first and second quarters of 2013, respectively, which were recorded in provision for loan losses on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations, netting the provision to $3.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2013 we had a
total of 20 loans with an aggregate carrying value of $247.6 million, before loan loss reserves, for which impairment reserves have been
recorded. At June 30, 2012, we performed an evaluation of our loan portfolio and determined that the fair value of the underlying collateral
securing three impaired loans with an aggregate carrying value of $55.4 million was less than the net carrying value of the loans, resulting in us
recording an additional $16.4 million provision for loan losses. We also recorded net recoveries of less than $0.1 million in the first quarter of
2012 and $0.7 million in the second quarter of 2012, netting the provision to $15.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. At June 30,
2012, we had a total of 20 loans with an aggregate carrying value of $271.7 million, before loan loss reserves, for which impairment reserves
were recorded.

Management fees increased $0.6 million, or 12%, to $5.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 from $5.0 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2012. These amounts represent compensation in the form of base management fees, on a cost reimbursement basis. The
management agreement also provides for incentive management fees and success-based payments to be paid to our manager upon the

completion of specified corporate objectives in addition to the standard base management fee. No incentive or success-based management fees
were earned for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. Refer to Contractual Commitments Management Agreement below for further
details including information related to our amended management agreement with ACM.

Gain on extinguishment of debt decreased $22.6 million, or 86%, to $3.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 from $26.3 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2012. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we purchased, at a discount, a $7.1 million investment grade
rated Class H note originally issued by our CDO III issuing entity from a third party investor and recorded a gain on early extinguishment of
debt of $3.8 million. During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we purchased, at a discount, $57.2 million of investment grade rated Class B,
C, D, E, F, G and H notes originally issued by our CDO II and CDO III issuing entities from third party investors and recorded a net gain on
early extinguishment of debt of $26.3 million.

Loss from equity affiliates was $0.2 million and $0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which reflects our
portion of the loss and income from our equity affiliates.
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Income Taxes

We are organized and conduct our operations to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes. As a REIT, we are generally not subject to
federal income tax on our REIT taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders, provided that we distribute at least 90% of our

REIT taxable income and meet certain other requirements. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, we were in compliance with all REIT requirements
and, therefore, have not recorded a provision for income taxes on our REIT taxable income for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,
except for $0.6 million of federal alternative minimum tax recorded in the second quarter of 2012.

Certain of our assets that produce non-qualifying income are owned by our taxable REIT subsidiaries, the income of which is subject to federal
and state income taxes. During the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we did not record a provision for income taxes for these taxable
REIT subsidiaries. However, during the first quarter of 2012 we recorded a $1.4 million receivable for the expected refund of income taxes paid
by a taxable REIT subsidiary in a prior year which was received in the third quarter of 2012.
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Income (loss) from Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2012, one of the real estate investments in a portfolio of hotel properties was sold to a third party for $2.4 million
and we recorded a gain on sale of $0.5 million. As a result, property operating income and expenses, which netted to income of less than $0.1
million for the six months ended June 30, 2012, was classified as discontinued operations.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, we entered into negotiations to sell one of our real estate owned investments to a third party at which time it
was determined that the property met the held-for-sale requirements pursuant to the accounting guidance. As a result, this investment was
reclassified from real estate owned to real estate held-for-sale at a value of $19.4 million and property operating income and expenses, which
netted to income of $0.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 were classified as discontinued operations. In the first quarter of 2012,
we sold the property and recorded a gain of $3.5 million.

During the third quarter of 2011, we entered into negotiations to sell another of our real estate owned investments to a third party at which time
it was determined that the property met the held-for-sale requirements pursuant to the accounting guidance. As a result, this investment was
reclassified from real estate owned to real estate held-for-sale at a value of $1.9 million, which was reduced to $1.2 million in the fourth quarter
of 2011, and property operating income and expenses, which netted to income of $0.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 were
classified as discontinued operations. In the first quarter of 2012, we sold the property and recorded a gain of less than $0.1 million.

During the third quarter of 2009, we mutually agreed with a first mortgage lender to appoint a receiver to operate another of our real estate
owned investments and we were working to assist in the transfer of title to the first mortgage lender. As a result we reclassified this investment
from real estate owned to real estate held-for-sale at a fair value of $41.4 million. In May 2012, we surrendered the property to the first
mortgage lender in full satisfaction of a$41.4 million mortgage note payable and recorded income from discontinued operations of $1.2 million
related to the reversal of accrued liabilities which were not incurred.

Preferred Stock Dividend

Preferred stock dividend was $1.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and represents the first quarter of 2013 dividend of $1.1
million as well as the accruals of the second quarter of 2013 dividends of $0.3 million and $0.4 million on our 8.25% Series A and 7.75%
Series B cumulative redeemable preferred stock, respectively, which are contractually payable by September 3, 2013.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest totaled $0.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and represents the
portion of income allocated to a third party s interest in a consolidated subsidiary, which holds an investment in operating partnership units that
are accruing interest and dividend income as well as a note payable that is accruing interest expense. See Note 12 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 1 herein.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

Liquidity is a measurement of the ability to meet potential cash requirements. Our short-term and long-term liquidity needs include ongoing
commitments to repay borrowings, fund future loans and investments, fund additional cash collateral from potential declines in the value of a
portion of our interest rate swaps, fund operating costs and distributions to our stockholders as well as other general business needs. Our
primary sources of funds for liquidity consist of proceeds from equity offerings, debt facilities and cash flows from our operations. Our equity
sources, depending on market conditions, consist of proceeds from capital market transactions including the issuance of common, convertible
and/or preferred equity securities. Our debt facilities include the issuance of floating rate notes resulting from our CDOs and our new CLOs, the
issuance of junior subordinated notes and borrowings under credit agreements. Net cash flows from operations include interest income from our
loan and investment portfolio reduced by interest expense on our debt facilities, cash from other investments reduced by expenses, repayments
of outstanding loans and investments and funds from junior loan participation arrangements.

We believe our existing sources of funds will be adequate for purposes of meeting our short-term and long-term liquidity needs. A majority of

our loans and investments are financed under existing debt obligations and their credit status is continuously monitored; therefore, these loans
and investments are expected to generate a generally stable return. Our ability to meet our long-term liquidity and capital resource requirements
is subject to obtaining additional debt and equity financing. Any decision by our lenders and investors to enter into such transactions with us
will depend upon a number of factors, such as our financial performance, compliance with the terms of our existing credit arrangements,
industry or market trends, the general availability of and rates applicable to financing transactions, such lenders and investors resources and
policies concerning the terms under which they make such capital commitments and the relative attractiveness of alternative investment or
lending opportunities.

While we have been successful in obtaining proceeds from equity offerings and from certain financing facilities in 2012 and 2013 to date,
including our new CLOs, current conditions in the capital and credit markets have and may continue to make certain forms of financing less
attractive and, in certain cases, less available. Therefore we will continue to rely, in part, on cash flows provided by operating and investing
activities for working capital.

To maintain our status as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, we must distribute annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable income. These
distribution requirements limit our ability to retain earnings and thereby replenish or increase capital for operations. However, we believe that
our capital resources and access to financing will provide us with financial flexibility and market responsiveness at levels sufficient to meet
current and anticipated capital requirements.
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Cash Flows

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of $50.7 million and $64.3 million, respectively. The following table shows
our cash flow components (in thousands):

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2013 2012

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 13,102 $ 7,160
Net cash (used in) / provided by investing

activities (219,950) 33,773
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing

activities 228,371 (31,887)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 21,523 9,046
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 29,189 55,236
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 50,712 $ 64,282

Our cash flows from operating activities increased by $5.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to the comparable period in
2012 primarily due to a $4.1 million increase in net income adjusted for noncash expenses, gains and losses, as well as a $3.9 million increase in
cash due to the change in other assets, net of a $1.1 million decrease in other liabilities.

Cash flows from investing activities decreased by $253.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to the comparable period in
2012 primarily due to a $197.2 million increase in the origination of loans, a $44.4 million decrease in payoffs and paydowns, a $24.1 million
decrease in the sale of real estate held-for-sale, and a $17.9 million decrease in the proceeds from the sale of a loan, net of a $29.7 million
decrease in the purchase of investments, net of principal collections, as compared to the first six months of 2012.

Cash flows from financing activities increased by $260.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to the comparable period in
2012 mainly due to $177.0 million in proceeds from the completion of a collateralized loan obligation, $70.8 million from the issuance of
common stock, $67.7 million from the issuance of preferred stock, a $20.8 million repayment in 2012 of a mortgage note payable held-for-sale,
a $19.2 million increase in restricted cash, a $1.7 million increase in proceeds from repurchase agreements and credit facilities, and a $1.5
million decrease in the amortization of our CDO vehicles as well as the purchase of our own CDO bonds. This change is net of a $82.5 million
increase in the repayment of repurchase agreements and credit facilities, the payment of common stock and preferred stock dividends of $8.6
million and a $4.6 million increase in the payment of deferred financing costs.

Equity Offerings

Our authorized capital provides for the issuance of up to 500 million shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and 100 million shares
of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share.
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In June 2010, we filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC under the 1933 Act with respect to an aggregate of $500.0
million of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares and warrants, that may be sold by us from time to time pursuant to
Rule 415 of the 1933 Act. On June 23, 2010, the SEC declared this shelf registration statement effective. In June 2013, we filed a new shelf
registration statement for $500.0 million of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares and warrants.

In June 2012, we completed a public offering in which we sold 3,500,000 shares of our common stock for $5.40 per share, and received net
proceeds of approximately $17.5 million after deducting the underwriting discount and other offering expenses. In October 2012, we completed
another public offering in which we sold 3,500,000 shares of our common stock for $5.80 per share, and received net proceeds of approximately
$19.2 million after deducting the underwriting discount and other offering expenses. We used the net proceeds from the offerings to make
investments, to repurchase or pay liabilities and for general corporate purposes.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into an  At-The-Market ( ATM ) equity offering sales agreement with JMP Securities LLC ( JMP ) whereby, in
accordance with the terms of the agreement, from time to time we could issue and sell through JMP up to 6,000,000 shares of our common
stock. Sales of the shares were made by
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means of ordinary brokers transactions or otherwise at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, or at negotiated prices. As of March 15,
2013, JMP sold all of the 6,000,000 shares for net proceeds of $45.6 million.

On February 1, 2013, we completed an underwritten public offering of 1,400,000 shares of 8.25% Series A cumulative redeemable preferred
stock generating net proceeds of approximately $33.6 million after deducting underwriting fees and estimated offering costs. On February 5,
2013, the underwriters exercised a portion of their over-allotment option for 151,500 shares providing additional net proceeds of approximately
$3.7 million. We used the net proceeds from the offering to make investments, to repurchase or pay liabilities and for general corporate
purposes.

On March 27, 2013, we completed a public offering in which we sold 5,625,000 shares of our common stock for $8.00 per share, and received
net proceeds of approximately $43.0 million after deducting the underwriting discount and other offering expenses. We used the net proceeds
from the offering to make investments, to repurchase or pay liabilities and for general corporate purposes. The underwriters were granted an
over-allotment option for 843,750 additional shares which expired in April 2013.

On May 9, 2013, we completed an underwritten public offering of 1,200,000 shares of 7.75% Series B cumulative redeemable preferred stock
generating net proceeds of approximately $28.9 million after deducting underwriting fees and estimated offering costs. On May 15, 2013, the
underwriters exercised a portion of their over-allotment option for 60,000 shares providing additional net proceeds of approximately $1.5
million. We used the net proceeds from the offering to make investments, to repurchase or pay liabilities and for general corporate purposes.

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had 43,136,975 and 31,249,225 common shares outstanding, respectively.

88
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Debt Facilities

We also maintain liquidity through three repurchase agreements, three warehousing credit facilities, a revolving credit facility, a note payable
and a junior loan participation with eight different financial institutions or companies. In addition, we have issued three collateralized debt
obligations or CDOs, two collateralized loan obligations or CLOs and nine separate junior subordinated notes. London inter-bank offered rate,
or LIBOR, refers to one-month LIBOR unless specifically stated. As of June 30, 2013, these facilities had aggregate borrowings of
approximately $1.3 billion.

The following is a summary of our debt facilities as of June 30, 2013:

At June 30, 2013

Debt Carrying Maturity
Debt Facilities Commitment Value Available Dates

Repurchase agreements and credit facilities.

Interest is variable based on pricing over

LIBOR and fixed $ 223,039,935 $ 101,097,436 $ 121,942,499 2013 2015
Collateralized debt obligations. Interest is

variable based on pricing over three-month

LIBOR (1) 744,105,570 744,105,570 2014 2016
Collateralized loan obligations. Interest is

variable based on pricing over three-month

LIBOR (1) 264,500,000 264,500,000 2016
Junior subordinated notes. Interest is variable

based on pricing over three-month LIBOR

?2) 159,025,006 159,025,006 2034 2037

Notes payable. Interest is at a fixed rate and

variable based on pricing over LIBOR 51,457,708 51,457,708 2013 2016
$ 1,442,128,219 $ 1,320,185,720 $ 121,942,499

(1) Maturity dates represent the weighted average remaining maturity based on the underlying collateral as of June 30, 2013.

(2) Represents a total face amount of $175.9 million less a total deferred amount of $16.8 million.

These debt facilities are described in further detail in Note 7 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 1 hereof.

Repurchase Agreements and Credit Facilities

13
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In July 2011, we entered into a repurchase agreement with a financial institution to finance the purchase of RMBS investments. During the six
months ended June 30, 2013, we financed the purchase of four RMBS investments with this repurchase agreement for a total of $6.3 million and
paid down the total debt by $18.6 million due to principal paydowns received on the RMBS investments. During the year ended December 31,
2012, we financed the purchase of 17 RMBS investments with this repurchase agreement for a total of $54.7 million and paid down the total
debt by $45.7 million due to principal paydowns received on the RMBS investments. The total debt balance was $22.8 million and $35.1
million at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we also financed the purchase of six
RMBS investments with this repurchase agreement for $32.4 million, which qualified as linked transactions, and paid down the total debt by
$6.3 million due to the principal paydowns received on the RMBS investments. The linked transactions are presented on a combined basis and
reported in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we financed the purchase of six RMBS
investments with this repurchase agreement for $10.1 million, which qualified as linked transactions, and paid down the debt by $3.4 million due
to the principal paydowns received on
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the RMBS investments. The facility generally finances between 60% and 90% of the value of each non-linked and linked investment, has a
rolling monthly term, and bears interest at a rate of 125 to 200 basis points over LIBOR. The facility also includes a minimum net worth
covenant of $100.0 million.

In June 2012, we entered into another repurchase agreement with a financial institution to finance the purchase of RMBS investments. During
the six months ended June 30, 2013, we financed the purchase of an RMBS investment with this repurchase agreement for $15.4 million and
paid down the total debt by $0.8 million due to principal paydowns received on the RMBS investments. During the year ended December 31,
2012 we financed the purchase of an RMBS investment for $0.8 million and paid down the debt by $0.1 million due to principal paydowns
received on the RMBS investment. The total debt balance was $15.3 million and $0.7 million at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we also financed two RMBS investments with this repurchase agreement for $30.8
million, which qualified as linked transactions, and paid down the total debt by $5.4 million due to the principal paydowns received on the
RMBS investments. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we financed the purchase of six RMBS investments with this repurchase
agreement for $61.2 million, which qualified as linked transactions, and paid down the debt by $3.3 million due to the principal paydowns
received on the RMBS investments. The facility generally finances between 75% and 90% of the value of each non-linked and linked
investment, has a rolling monthly term, and bears interest at a rate of 165 to 185 basis points over LIBOR.

In June 2013, we entered into another repurchase agreement with a financial institution to finance the purchase of RMBS investments. During

the six months ended June 30, 2013, we financed the purchase of an RMBS investment with this repurchase agreement for $11.4 million which
qualified as a linked transaction, and paid down the debt by $0.5 million due to principal paydowns received on the RMBS investment. The debt
balance was $10.8 million at June 30, 2013.

In July 2011, we entered into a two year, $50.0 million warehouse facility with a financial institution to finance first mortgage loans on
multifamily properties. In January 2013, we amended the facility, increasing the committed amount to $75.0 million. In April 2013, the facility
was amended to bear interest at a rate of 225 basis points over LIBOR which was originally 275 basis points over LIBOR, required a 0.25%
commitment fee, which was originally 1.0%, upon closing, matures in April 2015 with a one year extension option on outstanding advances that
requires two 5% paydowns and has warehousing and non-use fees. The facility also has a maximum advance rate of 75% and contains several
restrictions including full repayment of an advance if a loan becomes 60 days past due, is in default or is written down by us. The facility also
includes various financial covenants including a minimum liquidity requirement of $20.0 million, minimum tangible net worth which includes
junior subordinated notes as equity of $150.0 million, maximum total liabilities less subordinate debt of $2.0 billion, as well as certain other debt
service coverage ratios and debt to equity ratios. The facility also has a compensating balance requirement of $50.0 million to be maintained by
us and our affiliates. At June 30, 2013, the outstanding balance of this facility was $22.5 million.

In February 2013, we entered into a one year, $50.0 million warehouse facility with a financial institution to finance first mortgage loans on
multifamily properties. The facility bears interest at a rate of 250 basis points over LIBOR, requires a 12.5 basis point commitment fee upon
closing, matures in February 2014, has warehousing and non-use fees and allows for an original warehousing period of up to 24 months from the
initial advance on an asset. The facility also has a maximum advance rate of 75% and contains certain restrictions including partial prepayment
of an advance if a loan becomes 90 days past due or in the process of foreclosure, subject to certain conditions. The facility also includes
various financial covenants including a minimum liquidity requirement of $20.0 million, minimum tangible net worth which includes junior
subordinated notes as equity of $150.0 million, maximum total liabilities less subordinate debt of $2.0 billion, as well as certain other debt
service coverage ratios and debt to equity ratios. At June 30, 2013, the outstanding balance of this facility was $20.5 million.

In June 2013, we entered into a one year, $40.0 million warehouse facility with a financial institution to finance first mortgage loans on
multifamily properties, including a $10.0 million sublimit to finance retail and office properties. The facility bears interest at a rate of 200 basis
points over LIBOR, matures in June 2014, has warehousing fees and allows for an original warehousing period of up to 24 months from the

15



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

initial advance on an asset. The facility also has a maximum advance rate of 70% or 75%, depending on the property type, and contains certain
restrictions including prepayment of an advance if a loan becomes 60 days past due or in the process of

90

16



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

Table of Contents

foreclosure, subject to certain conditions. The facility also includes various financial covenants including a minimum liquidity requirement of
$20.0 million, minimum tangible net worth of $150.0 million, as well as a minimum debt service coverage ratio. At June 30, 2013, this facility
was not used.

In December 2012, we entered into a $17.3 million warehouse facility with a financial institution to finance the first mortgage loan on a
multifamily property. The facility bore interest at a rate of 275 basis points over LIBOR or Prime at our election, required a 1% commitment fee
upon closing and had a maturity of December 2017. In January 2013, the facility was repaid in full as part of the issuance of a second CLO.

In June 2012, we entered into a $12.6 million warehouse facility with a financial institution to finance the first mortgage loan on a multifamily
property. The facility bore interest at a rate of 275 basis points over LIBOR or Prime at our election, required a 1% commitment fee upon
closing, had a maturity of December 2013 and had a non-use fee. In January 2013, the facility was repaid in full as part of the issuance of a
second CLO.

In May 2012, we entered into a $15.0 million committed revolving line of credit with a one year term maturing in May 2013, which is secured
by a portion of the bonds originally issued by our CDO entities that have been repurchased by us. This facility has a 1% commitment fee, a 1%
non-use fee and pays interest at a fixed rate of 8% on any drawn portion of the line. The facility also includes a debt service coverage ratio
requirement for the posting of collateral. In January 2013, we amended the facility, increasing the committed amount to $20.0 million and a
fixed rate of interest of 8.5% on any drawn portion of the $20.0 million commitment. The amendment also included a one year extension option
upon maturity in May 2013 and required a 1% commitment fee and a 1% non-use fee. In May 2013, we extended the facility to a maturity in
May 2014 with a one year extension option and a 1% extension fee, as well as amended the facility to have an 8.5% non-use fee on the first $5.0
million not borrowed and a 1% non-use fee on the remaining funds not borrowed. If not extended in May 2014, there will be a $0.1 million fee.
At June 30, 2013, the outstanding balance of this facility was $20.0 million.

CDOs

We completed the formation of three separate CDO entities since 2005 by issuing to third party investors, tranches of investment grade
collateralized debt obligations through newly-formed wholly-owned subsidiaries (the Issuers ). The Issuers hold assets, consisting primarily of
real-estate related assets and cash which serve as collateral for the CDOs. The assets pledged as collateral for the CDOs were contributed from
our portfolio of assets. By contributing these real estate assets to the various CDOs, these transactions resulted in a decreased cost of funds
relating to the corresponding CDO assets and created capacity in our debt facilities.

The Issuers issued tranches of investment grade floating-rate notes of approximately $305.0 million, $356.0 million and $447.5 million for CDO
I, CDO II and CDO 111, respectively. CDO III also has a $100.0 million revolving note which was not drawn upon at the time of issuance. The
revolving note facility has a commitment fee of 0.22% per annum on the undrawn portion of the facility. The tranches were issued with floating
rate coupons based on three-month LIBOR plus pricing of 0.44% - 0.77%. Proceeds from the sale of the investment grade tranches issued in
CDO I, CDO II and CDO III of $267.0 million, $301.0 million and $317.1 million, respectively, were used to repay higher costing outstanding
debt under our repurchase agreements and notes payable. The CDOs could be replenished with substitute collateral for loans that are repaid
during the first four years for CDO I and the first five years for CDO II and CDO III, subject to certain customary provisions. Thereafter, the
outstanding debt balance is reduced as loans are repaid. Proceeds from the repayment of assets which serve as collateral for the CDOs must be
retained in its structure as restricted cash until such collateral can be replaced and therefore are not available to fund current cash needs. If such
cash is not used to replenish collateral, it could have a negative impact on our anticipated returns. As of January 15, 2012, CDO III has reached
the end of its replenishment date. Investor capital will be repaid quarterly from proceeds received from loan repayments held as collateral in

17



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

accordance with the terms of the CDO. As of April 15,2011, CDO II reached the end of its replenishment date and will no longer make
quarterly amortization payments of $1.2 million to investors as a reduction of the CDO liability. As of April 15, 2009, CDO I reached the end of
its replenishment date and will no longer make quarterly amortization payments of $2.0 million to investors. Investor capital will be repaid
quarterly from proceeds received from loan repayments held as collateral in accordance with the terms of the CDO. Proceeds distributed will be
recorded as a reduction of the CDO liability. Our CDO vehicles are VIEs for which we are the primary beneficiary and are consolidated in our
Financial Statements.
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In the first quarter of 2013, we purchased, at a discount, a $7.1 million investment grade rated Class H note originally issued by our CDO III
issuing entity for a price of $3.3 million from a third party investor. We recorded a gain on extinguishment of debt of $3.8 million from this
transaction in our 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, we purchased, at a discount, $42.7 million and $57.2 million, respectively, of investment
grade rated Class B, C, D, E, F, G and H notes originally issued by our CDO II and CDO 1II issuing entities for a price of $21.7 million and
$30.9 million, respectively, from third party investors. We recorded a net gain on extinguishment of debt of $21.0 million and $26.3 million,
respectively, from these transactions in our 2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The following table sets forth the face amount and gain on extinguishment of our CDO bonds repurchased in the following periods by bond
class:

For the Three Months Ended June 30, For the Six Months Ended June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Face Face Face Face
Class Amount  Gain Amount Gain Amount Gain Amount Gain
B $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 13,000,000 $ 4,615,000
C 3,329,509 1,200,182 3,329,509 1,200,182
D 10,350,000 4,537,503 10,350,000 4,537,503
E 6,250,000 2,850,787 7,765,276 3,581,908
F 9,708,556 5,048,417 9,708,556 5,048,417
G 8,672,039 4,777,138 8,672,039 4,777,138
H 4,403,771 2,554,187 7,100,000 3,763,000 4,403,771 2,554,187
Total $ $ $ 42,713,875 $ 20,968,214 $ 7,100,000 $ 3,763,000 $ 57,229,151 $ 26,314,335

In 2010, we re-issued our own CDO bonds we had acquired throughout 2009 with an aggregate face amount of $42.8 million, as well as CDO
bonds from other issuers acquired in the second quarter of 2008 with an aggregate face amount of $25.0 million and a carrying value of $0.4
million, and $10.5 million in cash, as part of an exchange for the retirement of $114.1 million of our junior subordinated notes. This transaction
resulted in the recording of $65.2 million of additional CDO debt, of which $42.3 million represents the portion of our CDO bonds that were
exchanged and $22.9 million represents the estimated interest due on the reissued bonds through their maturity, of which $20.4 million remains
at June 30, 2013. See Junior Subordinated Notes below.

At June 30, 2013, the outstanding note balance under CDO I, CDO II and CDO III was $133.1 million, $235.9 million and $375.1 million,
respectively.
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The following table outlines borrowings and the corresponding collateral under our collateralized debt obligations as of June 30, 2013:

Collateral
Debt Loans Securities Cash
Face Carrying Unpaid Carrying FaceCarryingFair  Restricted Collateral
Value Value Principal (1) Value (1) Value Valu&/alue (2) Cash (3) At-Risk (4)

CDO1 Issued four
investment grade
tranches

January 19, 2005.
Reinvestment
period through

April 2009. Stated
maturity date of
February 2040.
Interest is variable
based on
three-month
LIBOR; the
weighted average
note rate was 3.12% $ 127,372,181 $ 133,127,478 $ 284,732,671 $ 235,067,531 $ $ $ $ 34,681 $ 188,349,668

CDOII Issued nine
investment grade
tranches

January 11, 2006.
Reinvestment

period through

April 2011. Stated
maturity date of
April 2038. Interest
is variable based on
three-month

LIBOR; the
weighted average
note rate was 3.29% 230,006,381 235,919,273 394,454,071 344,198,943 2,241,087 178,271,174

CDO IIT Issued ten
investment grade
tranches

December 14, 2006.
Reinvestment

period through
January 2012.

Stated maturity date
of January 2042.
Interest is variable
based on
three-month

LIBOR; the
weighted average
note rate was 0.74% 366,282,297 375,058,819 484,908,993 454,317,526 2,238,167 237,892,280

Total CDOs $ 723,660,859 $ 744,105,570 $ 1,164,095,735 $ 1,033,584,000 $ $ $ $ 4,513,935 $ 604,513,122
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The following table outlines borrowings and the corresponding collateral under our collateralized debt obligations as of December 31, 2012:

Collateral
Debt Loans Securities Cash
Face Carrying Unpaid Carrying Face Carrying Fair Restricted Collateral
Value Value Principal (1) Value (1) Value ValueValue (2) Cash (3) At-Risk (4)
CDO1 Issued
four investment
grade tranches
January 19, 2005.
Reinvestment
period through
April 2009. Stated
maturity date of
February 2040.
Interest is variable
based on
three-month
LIBOR; the
weighted average
note rate was
3.28% $ 133,994,136 $ 139,856,472 $§ 299,881,599 $ 238,852,726 $ $ $ $ 1,036,155 $ 207,772,049

CDOII Issued
nine investment
grade tranches
January 11, 2006.
Reinvestment
period through
April 2011. Stated
maturity date of
April 2038.
Interest is variable
based on
three-month
LIBOR; the
weighted average
note rate was
3.24% 231,186,301 237,209,429 395,266,909 345,919,52900,00000,00000,000 470,952 188,271,174

CDO I Issued
ten investment
grade tranches
December 14,
2006.
Reinvestment
period through
January 2012.
Stated maturity
date of

January 2042.
Interest is variable
based on
three-month
LIBOR; the
weighted average
note rate was
0.68% 426,458,233 435,386,944 515,403,735 485,235,214 24,819,361 244,697,945

$ 791,638,670 $ 812,452,845 $ 1,210,552,243 $ 1,070,007,465 $ 10,000,000 $ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000 $ 26,326,468 $ 640,741,168
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Total
CDOs

(1) Amounts include loans to real estate assets consolidated by us that were reclassified to real estate owned and held-for-sale, net on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) The security with a fair value of $1,100,000 was rated a CCC- at December 31, 2012 by Standard & Poor s and was sold in May 2013.

(3) Represents restricted cash held for principal repayments in the CDOs. Does not include restricted cash related to interest payments, delayed
fundings and expenses.
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(4) Amounts represent the face value of collateral in default, as defined by the CDO indenture, as well as assets deemed to be credit risk
risk assets are reported by each of the CDOs and are generally defined as one that, in the CDO collateral manager s reasonable business
judgment, has a significant risk of declining in credit quality or, with a passage of time, becoming a defaulted asset.

CLOs

The following table outlines borrowings and the corresponding collateral under our collateralized loan obligations as of June 30, 2013:

Debt

Face
Value

CLOI Issued two
investment grade
tranches September 24,
2012. Replacement
period through
September 2014. Stated
maturity date of October
2022. Interest is variable
based on three-month
LIBOR; the weighted
average note rate was
3.64% $ 87,500,000 $

CLOII Issuedtwo
investment grade
tranches January 28,
2013. Replacement
period through January
2015. Stated maturity
date of February 2023.
Interest is variable based
on three-month LIBOR;
the weighted average
note rate was 2.59% $ 177,000,000 $

Total CLOs $ 264,500,000 $

Collateral
Loans Cash
Carrying Unpaid Carrying Restricted
Value Principal Value Cash
87,500,000 $ 125,000,146 $ 124,646,506 $ 86,504
177,000,000 245,437,960 244,828,912 14,200,126

264,500,000 $ 370,438,106  $ 369,475,418  $ 14,286,630

. Credit

The following table outlines borrowings and the corresponding collateral under our collateralized loan obligation as of December 31, 2012:

Debt

Face
Value

Collateral
Loans Cash
Carrying Unpaid Carrying Restricted
Value Principal Value Cash
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CLOI Issuedtwo

investment grade tranches

September 24, 2012.

Replacement period through

September 2014. Stated

maturity date of October

2022. Interest is variable

based on three-month

LIBOR; the weighted

average note rate was 3.65% $ 87,500,000 $ 87,500,000 $ 125,086,650  $ 124,525,103  $

On September 24, 2012, we completed our first collateralized loan obligation, or CLO, issuing to third party investors two tranches of
investment grade collateralized loan obligations through a newly-formed wholly-owned subsidiaries, Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan
Obligation 2012-1, Ltd. (the Issuer ) and Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2012-1, LLC (the Co-Issuer and together with the Issuer,
the Issuers ). Initially, the notes are secured by a portfolio of loan obligations with a face value of approximately $125.1 million, consisting
primarily of bridge loans and a senior participation interest in a first mortgage loan that were contributed from our existing loan portfolio. The
financing has a two-year replacement period that allows the principal proceeds and sale proceeds (if any) of the loan obligations to be reinvested
in qualifying replacement loan obligations, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the Indenture. Thereafter, the outstanding
debt balance will be reduced as loans are repaid. The aggregate principal amounts of the two classes of notes were $75.0 million of Class A
senior secured floating rate notes and $12.5 million of Class B secured floating rate notes. We retained a residual interest in the portfolio with a
notional amount of $37.6 million. The notes have an initial weighted average interest rate of approximately 3.39% plus one-month LIBOR and
interest payments on the notes are payable monthly,
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beginning on November 15, 2012, to and including October 15, 2022, the stated maturity date of the notes. We incurred approximately $2.4
million of issuance costs which is being amortized on a level yield basis over the average estimated life of the CLO. Including certain fees and
costs, the initial weighted average note rate was 4.35%. We account for this transaction on our balance sheet as a financing facility.

On January 28, 2013, we completed our second CLO, issuing to third party investors two tranches of investment grade collateralized loan
obligations through a newly-formed wholly-owned subsidiaries, Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2013-1, Ltd. (the Issuer )and
Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2013-1, LLC (the Co-Issuer and together with the Issuer, the Issuers ). As of the CLO closing date,
the notes are secured by a portfolio of loan obligations with a face value of approximately $210.0 million, consisting primarily of bridge loans
and a senior participation interest in a first mortgage loan that were contributed from our existing loan portfolio. The financing has a two-year
replacement period that allows the principal proceeds and sale proceeds (if any) of the loan obligations to be reinvested in qualifying
replacement loan obligations, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the indenture. Thereafter, the outstanding debt balance
will be reduced as loans are repaid. Initially, the proceeds of the issuance of the securities also included $50.0 million for the purpose of
acquiring additional loan obligations for a period of up to 90 days from the closing date of the CLO. Subsequently, the Issuer owns loan
obligations with a face value of approximately $260.0 million. The aggregate principal amounts of the two classes of notes were $156.0 million
of Class A senior secured floating rate notes and $21.0 million of Class B secured floating rate notes. We retained a residual interest in the
portfolio with a notional amount of approximately $83.0 million. The notes have an initial weighted average interest rate of approximately
2.36% plus one-month LIBOR and interest payments on the notes are payable monthly, beginning on March 15, 2013, to and including
February 15, 2023, the stated maturity date of the notes. We incurred approximately $3.2 million of issuance costs which is being amortized on
a level yield basis over the average estimated life of the CLO. Including certain fees and costs, the initial weighted average note rate was
3.00%. We account for this transaction on our balance sheet as a financing facility.

Our CLO vehicles are VIEs for which we are the primary beneficiary and are consolidated in our Financial Statements. The two investment
grade tranches are treated as a secured financing, and are non-recourse to us.

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the aggregate weighted average note rate for our collateralized loan obligations was 2.93% and
3.65%, respectively. Including certain fees and costs, the weighted average note rate was 3.43% and 4.33% at June 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012, respectively.
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Junior Subordinated Notes

In 2010, we retired $114.1 million of our junior subordinated notes, with a carrying value of $102.1 million in exchange for the re-issuance of
our own CDO bonds we had acquired throughout 2009 with an aggregate face amount of $42.8 million, CDO bonds from other issuers acquired
in the second quarter of 2008 with an aggregate face amount of $25.0 million and a carrying value of $0.4 million, and $10.5 million in cash.

In 2009, we retired $265.8 million of our then outstanding trust preferred securities, primarily consisting of $258.4 million of junior
subordinated notes issued to third party investors and $7.4 million of common equity issued to us in exchange for $289.4 million of newly issued
unsecured junior subordinated notes, representing 112% of the original face amount. The notes bore a fixed interest rate of 0.50% per annum
until March 31, 2012 or April 30, 2012 (the Modification Period ). Thereafter, interest is to be paid at the rates set forth in the existing trust
agreements until maturity, equal to a three month LIBOR plus a weighted average spread of 2.90%, which was reduced to 2.77% after the
exchange in 2010 mentioned above. The 12% increase to the face amount due upon maturity, which had a balance of $16.8 million at June 30,
2013, is being amortized into interest expense over the life of the notes. We also paid transaction fees of approximately $1.3 million to the
issuers of the junior subordinated notes related to this restructuring which is being amortized over the life of the notes. The terms of the
Modification Period expired in April 2012.

The junior subordinated notes are unsecured, have maturities of 25 to 28 years, pay interest quarterly at a floating rate of interest based on
three-month LIBOR and, absent the occurrence of special events, were not redeemable during the first two years.

At June 30, 2013, the aggregate carrying value under these facilities was $159.0 million with a current weighted average pay rate of 3.05%,
however, based upon the accounting treatment for the restructuring mentioned above, the effective rate was 3.09%. At December 31, 2012 the
weighted average pay rate was 3.08%, however, based upon the accounting treatment for the restructuring mentioned above, the effective rate
was 3.12%.

Notes Payable

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, notes payable consisted of a note payable and a junior loan participation. At June 30, 2013, the
aggregate outstanding balance under these facilities was $51.5 million.

We have a $50.2 million non-recourse note payable at June 30, 2013 related to a prior year exchange of profits interest transaction. During

2008, we recorded a $49.5 million note payable related to the exchange of our Prime Outlets Member, LLC ( POM ) profits interest for operating
partnership units in Lightstone Value Plus REIT, L.P. The note was initially secured by our interest in POM, matures in July 2016 and bears
interest at a fixed rate of 4.06% with payment deferred until the closing of the transaction. Upon the closing of the POM transaction in

March 2009, the note balance was increased to $50.2 million and is secured by our investment in common and preferred operating partnership
units in Lightstone Value Plus REIT, L.P.
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We have a junior loan participation with an outstanding balance at June 30, 2013 of $1.3 million on a $1.3 million bridge loan. Participations
have a maturity date equal to the corresponding mortgage loan and are secured by the participant s interest in the mortgage loan. Interest expense
is based on the portion of the interest received from the loan that is paid to the junior participant. Our obligation to pay interest on participations
is based on the performance of the related loan.
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Mortgage Note Payable Real Estate Owned

During 2011, we assumed a $55.4 million interest-only first lien mortgage in connection with the acquisition of real property pursuant to
bankruptcy proceedings for an entity in which we had a $29.8 million loan secured by a portfolio of multifamily assets (the Multifamily
Portfolio ). The real estate investment was classified as real estate owned in our Consolidated Balance Sheet in March 2011. The mortgage
bears interest at a variable rate of one-month LIBOR plus 1.23% and has a maturity date of March 2014 with a one year and three month
extension option. In June 2011, one of the properties in the Multifamily Portfolio was sold to a third party for $1.6 million and the proceeds
were used to pay down the first lien mortgage. The outstanding balance of this mortgage was $53.8 million at June 30, 2013.

Restrictive Covenants

Our debt facilities contain various financial covenants and restrictions, including minimum net worth, minimum liquidity and maximum debt
balance requirements, as well as certain other debt service coverage ratios and debt to equity ratios. We were in compliance with all financial
covenants and restrictions at June 30, 2013.

Our CDO and CLO vehicles contain interest coverage and asset over collateralization covenants that must be met as of the waterfall distribution
date in order for us to receive such payments. If we fail these covenants in any of our CDOs or CLOs, all cash flows from the applicable CDO
or CLO would be diverted to repay principal and interest on the outstanding CDO or CLO bonds and we would not receive any residual
payments until that CDO or CLO regained compliance with such tests. Our CDOs and CLOs were in compliance with all such covenants as of
June 30, 2013 as well as on the most recent determination date in July 2013. In the event of a breach of the CDO or CLO covenants that could
not be cured in the near-term, we would be required to fund our non-CDO or non-CLO expenses, including management fees and employee
costs, distributions required to maintain REIT status, debt costs, and other expenses with (i) cash on hand, (ii) income from any CDO or CLO
not in breach of a covenant test, (iii) income from real property and loan assets, (iv) sale of assets, (v) or accessing the equity or debt capital
markets, if available. We have the right to cure covenant breaches which would resume normal residual payments to us by purchasing
non-performing loans out of the CDOs or CLOs. However, we may not have sufficient liquidity available to do so at such time.

The chart below is a summary of our CDO and CLO compliance tests as of the most recent determination date in July 2013:

Cash Flow Triggers CDhO1 ChO 11 CDO III CLO1 CLOII

Overcollateralization (1)

Current 176.69% 139.10% 106.61% 142.96% 146.89%
Limit 145.00% 127.30% 105.60% 137.86% 144.25%
Pass / Fail Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

Interest Coverage (2)

Current 590.16% 509.66% 621.88% 255.32% 367.57%

28



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

Limit 160.00% 147.30% 105.60% 120.00% 120.00%

Pass / Fail Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass

(1) The overcollateralization ratio divides the total principal balance of all collateral in the CDO and CLO by the total principal balance of the
bonds associated with the applicable ratio. To the extent an asset is considered a defaulted security, the asset s principal balance for purposes of
the overcollateralization test, is the lesser of the asset s market value or the principal balance of the defaulted asset multiplied by the asset s
recovery rate which is determined by the rating agencies. Rating downgrades of CDO and CLO collateral will generally not have a direct impact
on the principal balance of a CDO and CLO asset for purposes of calculating the CDO and CLO overcollateralization test unless the rating
downgrade is below a significantly low threshold (e.g. CCC-) as defined in each CDO and CLO vehicle.
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(2) The interest coverage ratio divides interest income by interest expense for the classes senior to those retained by us.

The chart below is a summary of our CDO and CLO overcollateralization ratios as of the following determination dates:

Determination Date CDO1 Cbhbo 11 CDO III CLO1 CLOII

July 2013 176.69% 139.10% 106.61% 142.96% 146.89%
April 2013 174.776% 138.97% 106.56% 142.96% 146.89%
January 2013 172.73% 138.89% 105.90% 142.96%

October 2012 171.36% 138.59% 105.64%

July 2012 168.66% 144.775% 106.96%

The ratio will fluctuate based on the performance of the underlying assets, transfers of assets into the CDOs and CLOs prior to the expiration of
their respective replenishment dates, purchase or disposal of other investments, and loan payoffs. No payment due under the Junior
Subordinated Indentures may be paid if there is a default under any senior debt and the senior lender has sent notice to the trustee. The Junior
Subordinated Indentures are also cross-defaulted with each other.

Cash Flow From Operations

We continually monitor our cash position to determine the best use of funds to both maximize our return on funds and maintain an appropriate
level of liquidity. Historically, in order to maximize the return on our funds, cash generated from operations has generally been used to
temporarily pay down borrowings under credit facilities whose primary purpose is to fund our new loans and investments. Consequently, when
making distributions in the past, we have borrowed the required funds by drawing on credit capacity available under our credit facilities. Since
the terms of our short-term debt have changed due to market conditions, we may have to maintain adequate liquidity from operations to make
any future distributions.
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Contractual Commitments

As of June 30, 2013, we had the following material contractual obligations (dollars in thousands):

Contractual Payments Due by Period (1)
Obligations 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total

Repurchase
agreements and
credit facilities $ 38,040 $ 40,535 % 22,522 $ $ $ $ 101,097

Collateralized
debt obligations
) 137,486 276,615 100,951 151,478 77,576 744,106

Collateralized
loan obligations
3) 8,525 50,853 44,320 32,650 128,152 264,500

Junior

subordinated

notes (4) 175,858 175,858
Notes payable 1,300 50,158 51,458

Mortgage note
payable real

estate owned (6) 53,751 53,751
Outstanding

unfunded

commitments (6) 6,215 3,372 1,617 260 22 11,486
Totals $ 183,041 $ 382,798 $ 175,943  $ 246,216 $ 110,226  $ 304,032 $ 1,402,256

(1)  Represents principal amounts due based on contractual maturities. Does not include total projected interest payments on our
debt obligations of $16.2 million in 2013, $29.0 million in 2014, $21.2 million in 2015, $15.5 million in 2016, $10.2 million
in 2017 and $100.3 million thereafter based on current LIBOR rates.

(2)  Comprised of $133.1 million of CDO I debt, $235.9 million of CDO II debt and $375.1 million of CDO III debt with a
weighted average contractual maturity of 1.19, 1.69 and 1.46 years, respectively, as of June 30, 2013. The balance of
estimated interest due through maturity on CDO bonds reissued in 2010, which is included in the carrying values of the CDOs,
totaled $20.4 million at June 30, 2013. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we repurchased, at a discount, a $7.1
million investment grade note originally issued by our CDO III issuer and recorded a reduction of the outstanding debt balance
of $7.1 million.

(3)  Represents $87.5 million of CLO I debt and $177.0 million of CLO II debt with a weighted average contractual maturity of
2.75 and 4.31 years, respectively, as of June 30, 2013.
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Represents the face amount due upon maturity. The carrying value is $159.0 million, which is net of a deferred amount of
$16.8 million at June 30, 2013.

Represents a $55.4 million mortgage note payable with a contractual maturity in 2014, related to a real estate investment
purchased out of bankruptcy in March 2011, which was paid down in the second quarter of 2011 and had a balance of $53.8
million at June 30, 2013.

In accordance with certain loans and investments, we have outstanding unfunded commitments of $11.5 million as of June 30,
2013, that we are obligated to fund as the borrowers meet certain requirements. Specific requirements include, but are not
limited to, property renovations, building construction, and building conversions based on criteria met by the borrower in
accordance with the loan agreements. In relation to the $11.5 million outstanding balance at June 30, 2013, our restricted cash
balance contained approximately $5.8 million available to fund the portion of the unfunded commitments for loans financed
by our CDO vehicles.
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Management Agreement

We, ARLP and Arbor Realty SR, Inc. have a management agreement with ACM, pursuant to which ACM provides certain services and we pay
ACM a base management fee and under certain circumstances, an annual incentive fee.

The base management fee is an arrangement whereby we reimburse ACM for its actual costs incurred in managing our business based on

the parties agreement in advance on an annual budget with subsequent quarterly true-ups to actual costs. The 2012 base management fee was
$10.0 million and the 2013 base management fee is estimated to be approximately $11.2 million. All origination fees on investments are
retained by us.

The incentive fee is calculated as (1) 25% of the amount by which (a) our funds from operations per share, adjusted for certain gains and losses
including gains from the retirement and restructuring of debt and 60% of any loan loss reserve recoveries (spread over a three year period),
exceeds (b) the product of (x) 9.5% per annum or the Ten Year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 3.5%, whichever is greater, and (y) the greater of $10.00
or the weighted average of book value of the net assets contributed by ACM to ARLP per ARLP partnership unit, the offering price per share of
our common equity in the private offering on July 1, 2003 and subsequent offerings and the issue price per ARLP partnership unit for
subsequent contributions to ARLP, multiplied by (2) the weighted average of our outstanding shares.

The minimum return, or incentive fee hurdle, to be reached before an incentive fee is earned, is a percentage applied on a per share basis to the
greater of $10.00 or the average gross proceeds per share. In addition, 60% of any loan loss and other reserve recoveries are eligible to be
included in the incentive fee calculation, which recoveries are spread over a three year period.

The management agreement also allows us to consider, from time to time, the payment of additional success-based fees to ACM for
accomplishing certain specified corporate objectives; has a termination fee of $10.0 million; and is renewable automatically for successive
one-year terms, unless terminated with six months prior written notice.

We incurred $2.8 million and $5.6 million of base management fees for services rendered in the three and six months ended June 30, 2013,
respectively and $2.5 million and $5.0 million of base management fees for services rendered in the three and six months ended June 30, 2012,
respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, ACM did not earn an incentive fee installment and no success-based
payments were made.

The incentive fee is measured on an annual basis. However, when applicable, we will pay the annual incentive fee in quarterly installments,
each within 60 days of the end of each fiscal quarter. The calculation of each installment is based on results for the twelve months ending on the
last day of the fiscal quarter for which the installment is payable. These installments of the annual incentive fee are deemed to be an advance
subject to potential reconciliation at the end of such fiscal year, and any overpayments are required to be repaid in accordance with the amended
management agreement. Subject to the ownership limitations in our charter, at least 25% of this incentive fee is payable to our manager in
shares of our common stock having a value equal to the average closing price per share for the last twenty days of the fiscal quarter for which
the incentive fee is being paid.
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The incentive fee is accrued as it is earned. The expense incurred for the incentive fee paid in common stock is determined using the valuation
method described above and the quoted market price of our common stock on the last day of each quarter. At December 31 of each year, we
remeasure the incentive fee paid to ACM in the form of common stock in accordance with current accounting guidance, which discusses how to
determine the expense when certain terms are not known prior to the measurement date. Accordingly, any expense recorded for such common
stock is adjusted to reflect the fair value of the common stock on the measurement date when the final calculation of the total incentive fee is
determined. In the event that the incentive fee for the full year is an amount less than the total of the installment payments made to ACM for the
year, ACM will refund the amount of such overpayment to us in cash regardless of whether such installments were paid in cash or common
stock. In such a case, we would record a negative incentive fee expense in the quarter when such overpayment is determined.
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Additionally, in 2007, ACM received an incentive fee installment totaling $19.0 million which was recorded as a prepaid management fee
related to the incentive fee on $77.1 million of deferred revenue recognized on the transfer of control of the 450 West 33rd Street property, one
of our equity affiliates.

Related Party Transactions

Due from related party was approximately $0.1 million at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, and consisted primarily of
escrows held by ACM and its affiliates related to real estate transactions.

Due to related party was $1.9 million at June 30, 2013 and consisted primarily of base management fees due to ACM, of which $0.7 million will
be remitted by us in the third quarter of 2013. At December 31, 2012, due to related party was $3.1 million and consisted primarily of base
management fees due to ACM, which were remitted by us in the first quarter of 2013.

In April 2013, we originated six bridge loans totaling $53.0 million for a portfolio of multifamily properties owned by a consortium of investors
including Mr. Ivan Kaufman and his affiliates and Mr. Fred Weber, who together own an interest of approximately 19% in the borrowing entity.
The loans have an interest rate of one-month LIBOR plus 7.25% and a maturity date of April 2015. Also in April 2013, we purchased, at par, a
$6.4 million bridge loan from ACM who originated the loan in March 2013 to a third party entity that acquired the property from an entity
owned by Mr. Ivan Kaufman and his affiliates and Mr. Fred Weber, who together also provided a $1.1 million preferred equity contribution to
the overall transaction. Mr. Ivan Kaufman also provided a $1.0 million personal guaranty on the bridge loan. The bridge loan bears interest at a
rate of one-month LIBOR plus 5.00% for the first year than one-month LIBOR plus 6.00% thereafter and has a maturity date of March 2015
with three one year extension options. Interest income recorded from these loans totaled approximately $1.0 million for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2013.

In January 2013, we originated a $7.5 million bridge loan for a multifamily property in Charlotte, North Carolina. William C. Green, who serves
on our Board of Directors, holds a 6.6% partnership interest in the borrowing entity and is the chief financial officer of an affiliated entity that is
a partner in, and the management company for, the borrowing entity. Mr. Green also provided a $0.4 million personal guaranty on the bridge
loan. The loan bears interest at a rate of one-month LIBOR plus 6.00% and has a maturity date of January 2015. Interest income recorded from
this loan totaled approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013.

In December 2012, ACM acquired a multifamily property in Detroit, Michigan and simultaneously sold the property to a third party, who
received a $30.0 million bridge loan from us. ACM retained a $6.0 million preferred equity loan to the entity. The loan to us bears interest at a
rate of one-month LIBOR plus 5.00% with a LIBOR cap of 1.00% and has a maturity date of November 2014 with three one year extension
options. Interest income recorded from this loan totaled approximately $0.4 million and $0.8 million for the three and six months ended

June 30, 2013.

In September 2012, we purchased, at par, a $5.1 million bridge loan from ACM. The loan was originated by ACM in May 2012 to a third party
entity that acquired a multifamily property from ACM. The loan bears interest at a rate of one-month LIBOR plus 5.50% with a LIBOR floor of
0.24% and has a maturity date of May 2015. Interest income recorded from this loan totaled approximately $0.1 million for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2013.

35



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

In December 2011, we completed a restructuring of a $67.6 million preferred equity loan on the Lexford Portfolio ( Lexford ), which is a portfolio
of multi-family assets. We, along with a consortium of independent outside investors, made an additional preferred equity investment of $25.0
million in Lexford, of which we hold a $10.5 million interest, and Mr. Fred Weber, our Executive Vice President of Structured Finance, holds a
$0.5 million interest, at June 30, 2013. The original preferred equity investment now bears a fixed rate of interest of 2.36%, revised from an
original rate of LIBOR plus 5.00% (the loan was paying a modified rate of LIBOR plus 1.65% at the time of the new investment). The original
preferred equity investment matures in June 2020. Interest income recorded from the preferred equity investment totaled approximately $0.3
million and $0.6 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The new preferred equity investment has a

fixed
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interest rate of 12% and also matures in June 2020. We, along with the same outside investors, also made a $0.1 million equity investment into
Lexford, of which we held a $44,000 noncontrolling interest, and do not have the power to control the significant activities of the entity. During
the fourth quarter of 2011, we recorded losses from the entity against the equity investment, reducing the balance to zero. We record this
investment under the equity method of accounting. In addition, under the terms of the restructuring, Lexford s first mortgage lender required a
change of property manager for the underlying assets. The new management company is an affiliate of Mr. Ivan Kaufman, our chairman and
chief executive officer, and has a contract with the new entity for 7.5 years and will be entitled to 4.75% of gross revenues of the underlying
properties, along with the potential to share in the proceeds of a sale or refinancing of the debt should the management company remain engaged
by the new entity at the time of such capital event. In the first quarter of 2012, Mr. Fred Weber invested $250,000 in the new management
company and currently owns a 23.5% ownership interest. Mr. Ivan Kaufman and his affiliates currently own a 53.9% ownership interest.

During the second quarter of 2011, we originated a loan to a third party borrower for a portfolio of properties with an unpaid principal balance of
$24.4 million as of June 30, 2013, of which, one property in the portfolio was previously financed with an $11.7 million loan that was purchased
by ACM, our manager. The $11.7 million loan was repaid as part of the $24.4 million loan on the portfolio. The new loan had a variable
interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.75% and was repaid in full in January 2013. Interest income recorded from this loan totaled approximately $0.1
million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and approximately $0.3 million and $0.6 million for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2012, respectively.

During the first quarter of 2011, we originated four mortgage loans totaling $28.4 million to borrowers which were secured by property
purchased from ACM, our manager, or its affiliate. Two of the loans totaling $22.4 million have maturity dates of March 2014 and a combined
weighted average variable interest rate of 6.20% as of March 31, 2013 and were secured by the same property. The third was a $2.0 million
bridge loan with a maturity date of February 2013 and an interest rate of one-month LIBOR plus 6.00%, which was paid off in the third quarter
of 2012. The fourth was a $4.0 million bridge loan with an original maturity date in April 2013 which was extended to March 2014 and an
interest rate of one-month LIBOR plus 6.00%. Interest income recorded from these loans totaled approximately $0.4 million and $0.9 million
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and approximately $0.5 million and $0.9 million for the three and six months ended June 30,
2012, respectively.

In October 2010, we purchased, at par, a $4.7 million bridge loan from ACM. The loan was originated by ACM in June 2010 to a joint venture
that acquired a condo development property in Brooklyn, New York. The loan bore interest at a rate of one-month LIBOR plus 8% with a
LIBOR floor of 0.5% and a LIBOR cap of 1.5% and had a maturity date of June 2012. In the second quarter of 2012, the loan matured and was
paid off. In addition, ACM contributed $0.9 million for a 50% non-controlling interest in an entity, which owns 28% of this joint venture. In
the third quarter of 2011, ACM sold its investment in this joint venture to an affiliated entity of Mr. Ivan Kaufman for $0.9 million. Interest
income recorded from this loan totaled approximately $0.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012.

We are dependent upon our manager, ACM, with whom we have a conflict of interest, to provide services to us that are vital to our operations.
Our chairman, chief executive officer and president, Mr. Ivan Kaufman, is also the chief executive officer and president of our manager, and, our
chief financial officer and treasurer, Mr. Paul Elenio, is the chief financial officer of our manager. In addition, Mr. Kaufman and his affiliated
entities (the Kaufman Entities ) together beneficially own approximately 91% of the outstanding membership interests of ACM and certain of our
employees and directors also hold an ownership interest in ACM. Furthermore, one of our former directors is general counsel to ACM and
another of our directors also serves as the trustee of one of the Kaufman Entities that holds a majority of the outstanding membership interests in
ACM and co-trustee of another Kaufman Entity that owns an equity interest in our manager. ACM currently holds approximately 5.3 million of
our common shares, representing approximately 12% of the voting power of our outstanding stock as of June 30, 2013. Our Board of Directors
approved a resolution under our charter allowing Ivan Kaufman and ACM, (which Mr. Kaufman has a controlling equity interest in), to own
more than the ownership interest limit of our common stock as stated in our charter as amended. In May 2012, our charter was amended to
lower each of the general aggregate stock ownership limit and the general common stock ownership limit from 7% to 5% unless an exemption is
granted by our Board of Directors.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Funds from Operations

We are presenting funds from operations ( FFO ) because we believe it to be an important supplemental measure of our operating performance in
that it is frequently used by analysts, investors and other parties in the evaluation of real estate investment trusts (REITs). The revised White
Paper on FFO approved by the Board of Governors of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, in April 2002
defines FFO as net income (loss) attributable to Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. (computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States ( GAAP )), excluding gains (losses) from sales of depreciated real properties, plus impairments of depreciated properties and
real estate related depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. We consider gains

and losses on the sales of undepreciated real estate investments to be a normal part of our recurring operating activities in accordance with

GAAP and should not be excluded when calculating FFO. In accordance with the revised white paper, losses from discontinued operations are
not excluded when calculating FFO.

FFO is not intended to be an indication of our cash flow from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) or a measure of our
liquidity, nor is it entirely indicative of funding our cash needs, including our ability to make cash distributions. Our calculation of FFO may be
different from the calculation used by other companies and, therefore, comparability may be limited.

FFO for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(Unaudited) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net income attributable to Arbor Realty
Trust, Inc. common stockholders $ 2,995,866 $ 15,546,018 $ 9,636,105 $ 19,707,798
Subtract:
Gain on sale of real estate held-for-sale (3,487,145)
Add:
Depreciation real estate owned and
held-for-sale (1) 1,827,595 1,540,217 3,459,726 2,716,972
Depreciation investment in equity affiliates 22,599 26,936 45,198 53,871
Funds from operations ( FFO ) $ 4,846,060 $ 17,113,171 $ 13,141,029 $ 18,991,496
Diluted FFO per common share $ 0.11 $ 068 $ 0.34 $ 0.77
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 43,555,495 25,267,459 38,921,834 24,805,807
(1) Includes discontinued operations.
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Adjusted Book Value per Common Share

We believe that adjusted book value per share is an additional appropriate measure given the magnitude and the deferral structure of the 450
West 33rd Street transaction from 2007, as well as the changes in the fair value of certain derivative instruments. Adjusted book value per share
currently reflects the future impact of the 450 West 33rd Street transaction on our financial condition as well as the evaluation of our operating
results without the effects of unrealized losses from certain of our derivative instruments. We consider this non-GAAP financial measure to be
an effective indicator of our financial performance for both us and our investors. We do not advocate that investors consider this non-GAAP
financial measure in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP. In addition, GAAP book value
per share and adjusted book value per share calculations do not take into account any dilution from the potential exercise of the warrants issued
to Wachovia as part of the 2009 debt restructuring.

GAAP book value per share and adjusted book value per share as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is as follows:

June 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
GAAP Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. Stockholders Equity $ 395,288,632 $ 229,329,349
Subtract: 8.25% Series A and 7.75% Series B cumulative redeemable preferred
stock (67,654,655)
GAAP Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. Common Stockholders Equity $ 327,633,977 $ 229,329,349
Add: 450 West 33rd Street transaction ~ deferred revenue 77,123,133 77,123,133
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments 29,782,120 37,754,775
Subtract: 450 West 33rd Street transaction prepaid management fee (19,047,949) (19,047,949)
Adjusted Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. Stockholders Equity $ 415,491,281 $ 325,159,308
Adjusted book value per common share $ 9.63 $ 10.41
GAAP book value per common share $ 7.60 $ 7.34
Common shares outstanding 43,136,975 31,249,225
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Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and
real estate values. The primary market risks that we are exposed to are real estate risk and interest rate risk.

Market Conditions

We are subject to market changes in the debt and secondary mortgage markets. These markets have experienced disruptions, which have and
may in the future have an adverse impact on our earnings and financial condition.

In general, credit markets have experienced difficulty over the past several years. However, of late, we have been able to access equity and debt
markets through equity offerings and the issuance of CLOs. While there can be no assurance that we will continue to have access to the equity
and debt markets, we will continue to pursue these and other available market opportunities as means to increase our liquidity and capital base.

Real Estate Risk

Commercial mortgage assets may be viewed as exposing an investor to greater risk of loss than residential mortgage assets since such assets are
typically secured by larger loans to fewer obligors than residential mortgage assets. Multi-family and commercial property values and net
operating income derived from such properties are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, events such as natural disasters including hurricanes and earthquakes, acts of war and/or terrorism (such as the events of

September 11, 2001) and others that may cause unanticipated and uninsured performance declines and/or losses to us or the owners and
operators of the real estate securing our investment; national, regional and local economic conditions (which may be adversely affected by
industry slowdowns and other factors); local real estate conditions (such as an oversupply of housing, retail, industrial, office or other
commercial space); changes or continued weakness in specific industry segments; construction quality, construction delays, construction cost,
age and design; demographic factors; retroactive changes to building or similar codes; and increases in operating expenses (such as energy
costs). In the event net operating income decreases, a borrower may have difficulty repaying our loans, which could result in losses to us. In
addition, decreases in property values reducing the value of collateral, and a lack of liquidity in the market, could reduce the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, which could also cause us to suffer losses. Even when the net operating income is sufficient to cover
the related property s debt service, there can be no assurance that this will continue to be the case in the future.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax policies, domestic and international economic and
political considerations and other factors beyond our control.

41



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

Our operating results will depend in large part on differences between the income from our loans and our borrowing costs. Most of our loans
and borrowings are variable-rate instruments, based on LIBOR. The objective of this strategy is to minimize the impact of interest rate changes
on our net interest income. In addition, we have various fixed rate loans in our portfolio, which are financed with variable rate LIBOR
borrowings. We have entered into various interest swaps (as discussed below) to hedge our exposure to interest rate risk on our variable rate
LIBOR borrowings as it relates to our fixed rate loans. Certain of these swaps are scheduled to mature on the original maturity dates of their
corresponding loans. However, loans are sometimes extended and, consequently, do not pay off on their original maturity dates. If a loan is
extended, whether it is through an existing extension option or a modification, our exposure to interest rate risk may be increased. In these
instances, we could have a fixed rate loan in our portfolio financed with variable debt and, since the corresponding interest swap already
matured, a portion of our debt is no longer protected against interest rate risk. Some of our loans and borrowings are subject to various interest
rate floors. As a result, the impact of a change in interest rates may be different on our interest income than it is on our interest expense.
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We utilize interest rate swaps to limit interest rate risk. Derivatives are used for hedging purposes rather than speculation. Also, in certain
circumstances, we may finance the purchase of RMBS investments through a repurchase agreement with the same counterparty which may
qualify as a linked transaction. If both transactions are entered into contemporaneously or in contemplation of each other, the transactions are
presumed to be linked transactions unless certain criteria are met, and we account for the purchase of such securities and the repurchase
agreement on a combined basis as a forward contract derivative. We do not enter into financial instruments for trading purposes.

One month LIBOR approximated 0.19% at June 30, 2013 and 0.21% at December 31, 2012.

Based on our loans, securities available-for-sale, securities held-to-maturity and liabilities as of June 30, 2013, and assuming the balances of
these loans, securities and liabilities remain unchanged for the subsequent twelve months, a 0.25% increase in LIBOR would decrease our
annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.2 million. This is primarily due to a substantial portion of our portfolio having variable
interest rates, partially offset by various interest rate floors that are in effect at a rate that is above a 0.25% increase in LIBOR which would limit
the effect of a 0.25% increase, and increased expense on variable rate debt, partially offset by our interest rate swaps that effectively convert a
portion of the variable rate LIBOR based debt, as it relates to certain fixed rate assets, to a fixed basis that is not subject to a 0.25% increase.
Based on the loans, securities available-for-sale, securities held-to-maturity and liabilities as of June 30, 2013, and assuming the balances of
these loans, securities and liabilities remain unchanged for the subsequent twelve months, a 0.25% decrease in LIBOR would increase our
annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.8 million. This is primarily due to our interest rate swaps that effectively converted a
portion of the variable rate LIBOR based debt, as it relates to certain fixed rate assets, to a fixed basis that is not subject to a 0.25% decrease,
partially offset by various interest rate floors which limit the effect of a decrease on interest income and decreased expense on variable rate debt.

Based on our loans, securities available-for-sale, securities held-to-maturity and liabilities as of December 31, 2012, and assuming the balances
of these loans, securities and liabilities remain unchanged for the subsequent twelve months, a 0.25% increase in LIBOR would decrease our
annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.4 million. This is primarily due to a substantial portion of our portfolio having variable
interest rates, partially offset by various interest rate floors that are in effect at a rate that is above a 0.25% increase in LIBOR which would limit
the effect of a 0.25% increase, and increased expense on variable rate debt, partially offset by our interest rate swaps that effectively convert a
portion of the variable rate LIBOR based debt, as it relates to certain fixed rate assets, to a fixed basis that is not subject to a 0.25% increase.
Based on the loans, securities available-for-sale, securities held-to-maturity and liabilities as of December 31, 2012, and assuming the balances
of these loans, securities and liabilities remain unchanged for the subsequent twelve months, a 0.25% decrease in LIBOR would increase our
annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.9 million. This is primarily due to our interest rate swaps that effectively converted a
portion of the variable rate LIBOR based debt, as it relates to certain fixed rate assets, to a fixed basis that is not subject to a 0.25% decrease,
partially offset by various interest rate floors which limit the effect of a decrease on interest income and decreased expense on variable rate debt.

In the event of a significant rising interest rate environment and/or economic downturn, defaults could increase and result in credit losses to us,
which could adversely affect our liquidity and operating results. Further, such delinquencies or defaults could have an adverse effect on the
spreads between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

In connection with our CDOs described in Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, we entered
into interest rate swap agreements to hedge the exposure to the risk of changes in the difference between three-month LIBOR and one-month
LIBOR interest rates. These interest rate swaps became necessary due to the investor s return being paid based on a three-month LIBOR index
while the assets contributed to the CDOs are yielding interest based on a one-month LIBOR index.
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We had two of these interest rate swap agreements outstanding that had combined notional values of $58.5 million as of June 30, 2013 compared
to eight of these interest rate swap agreements outstanding with combined notional values of $603.5 million as of December 31, 2012. The
market value of these interest rate swaps is dependent upon existing market interest rates and swap spreads, which change over time. If there
were a 25 basis point increase in forward interest rates as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, the value of these
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interest rate swaps would have decreased by approximately $0.1 million for both periods. If there were a 25 basis point decrease in forward
interest rates as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, the value of these interest rate swaps would have increased by
approximately $0.1 million for both periods.

We also have interest rate swap agreements outstanding to hedge current and outstanding LIBOR based debt relating to certain fixed rate loans
within our portfolio. We had 14 of these interest rate swap agreements outstanding that had a combined notional value of $297.6 million as of
June 30, 2013 compared to 14 interest rate swap agreements outstanding with combined notional values of $312.2 million as of December 31,
2012. The fair market value of these interest rate swaps is dependent upon existing market interest rates and swap spreads, which change over
time. If there had been a 25 basis point increase in forward interest rates as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, the fair
market value of these interest rate swaps would have increased by approximately $1.9 million and $2.4 million, respectively. If there were a 25
basis point decrease in forward interest rates as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, the fair market value of these interest rate
swaps would have decreased by approximately $2.0 million and $2.4 million, respectively.

We also had two LIBOR Caps with a combined notional value of $79.3 million at December 31, 2012. If there were a 25 basis point increase in
forward interest rates as of December 31, 2012, the value of the LIBOR Caps would have increased by less than $0.1 million. If there were a 25
basis point decrease in forward interest rates as of December 31, 2012, the value of the LIBOR Caps would have decreased by less than $0.1
million. We had no LIBOR Caps as of June 30, 2013.

We also had 20 forward contracts due to recording the purchase of 20 RMBS investments as linked transactions on a combined basis with the
related repurchase financing, with a combined fair value of $15.5 million as of June 30, 2013 compared to 12 forward contracts due to recording
the purchase of 12 RMBS investments as linked transactions on a combined basis with the related repurchase financing, with a combined fair
value of $10.8 million as of December 31, 2012. As of June 30, 2013, assuming the balances of the securities and liabilities remain unchanged
for the subsequent twelve months, a 0.25% increase in LIBOR would decrease our annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.4
million, and a 0.25% decrease in LIBOR would increase our annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.3 million. As of

December 31, 2012, assuming the balances of the securities and liabilities remain unchanged for the subsequent twelve months, a 0.25%
increase in LIBOR would decrease our annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.2 million, and a 0.25% decrease in LIBOR would
increase our annual net income and cash flows by approximately $0.1 million.

Certain of our interest rate swaps, which are designed to hedge interest rate risk associated with a portion of our loans and investments, could
require the funding of additional cash collateral for changes in the market value of these swaps. Due to the prolonged volatility in the financial
markets that began in 2007, the value of these interest rate swaps have declined substantially. As a result, at June 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012, we funded approximately $15.7 million and $20.0 million, respectively, in cash related to these swaps. If we continue to experience
significant changes in the outlook of interest rates, these contracts could continue to decline in value, which would require additional cash to be
funded. However, at maturity the value of these contracts return to par and all cash will be recovered. If we do not have available cash to meet
these requirements, this could result in the early termination of these interest rate swaps, leaving us exposed to interest rate risk associated with
these loans and investments, which could adversely impact our financial condition.

Our hedging transactions using derivative instruments also involve certain additional risks such as counterparty credit risk, the enforceability of
hedging contracts and the risk that unanticipated and significant changes in interest rates will cause a significant loss of basis in the contract.

The counterparties to our derivative arrangements are major financial institutions with high credit ratings with which we and our affiliates may
also have other financial relationships. As a result, we do not anticipate that any of these counterparties will fail to meet their obligations. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to adequately protect against the foregoing risks and will ultimately realize an economic benefit that
exceeds the related amounts incurred in connection with engaging in such hedging strategies.

45



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

107

46



Edgar Filing: SECURITY CAPITAL CORP/DE/ - Form 8-K

Table of Contents

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the Exchange Act )) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon such evaluation, our chief executive officer and

chief financial officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in recording,
processing, summarizing and reporting, on a timely basis, information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the
Exchange Act and are effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There have not been any changes in our internal controls over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under
the Exchange Act) during our most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not involved in any material litigation nor, to our knowledge, is any material litigation threatened against us other than the following:

On June 15, 2011, three related lawsuits were filed by the Extended Stay Litigation Trust (the Trust ), a post-bankruptcy litigation trust alleged to
have standing to pursue claims that previously had been held by Extended Stay, Inc. and the Homestead Village L.L.C. family of companies
(together ESI ) (formerly Chapter 11 debtors, together the Debtors ) that have emerged from bankruptcy. Two of the lawsuits were filed in the
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York, and the third in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, New York
County. (The New York State Court action has been removed to the Bankruptcy Court). There are 73 defendants in the three lawsuits,

including 55 corporate and partnership entities and 18 individuals. A subsidiary of ours and certain other entities that are affiliates of ours are
included as defendants.

The lawsuits all allege, as a factual basis and background, certain facts surrounding the June 2007 leveraged buyout of ESI from affiliates of
Blackstone Capital. Our subsidiary, Arbor ESH II, LLC, had a $115.0 million investment in the Series A1 Preferred Units of a holding company
of Extended Stay, Inc. The New York State Court action and one of the two federal court actions name as defendants, Arbor ESH II, LLC,

Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC and ABT-ESI LLC, an entity in which we have a membership interest, among the broad group of

defendants. These two actions were commenced by substantially identical complaints. The defendants are alleged in these complaints, among
other things, to have breached fiduciary and contractual duties by causing or allowing the Debtors to pay illegal dividends or other improper
distributions of value at a time when the Debtors were insolvent. These two complaints also allege that the defendants aided and abetted,
induced, or participated in breaches of fiduciary duty, waste, and unjust enrichment ( Fiduciary Duty Claims ) and name a director of ours, and a
former general counsel of Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC, each of whom had served on the Board of Directors of ESI for a period of time.
We are defending these two defendants and paying the costs of such defense. On the basis of the foregoing allegations, the Trust has asserted
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claims under a number of common law theories, seeking the return of assets transferred by the Debtors prior to the Debtors bankruptcy filing.

In the third action, filed in Bankruptcy Court, the same plaintiff, the Trust, has named Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC and ABT-ESI LLC,
together with a number of other defendants and asserts claims, including constructive and fraudulent conveyance claims under state and federal
statutes, as well as a claim under the Federal Debt Collection Procedure Act.

On June 28, 2013, the Trust filed a motion to amend the lawsuits, to, among other things, (i) consolidate the lawsuits into one lawsuit,
(i1) remove 47 defendants, none of whom are related to us, from the lawsuits so that there
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are 26 remaining defendants, including 16 corporate and partnership entities and 10 individuals, and (iii) reduce the counts within the lawsuits
from over 100 down to 17. The remaining counts in the amended complaint against affiliates of ours are principally state law claims for breach
of fiduciary duties, waste, unlawful dividends and unjust enrichment, and claims under the Bankruptcy Code for avoidance and recovery actions,
among others. If the amended complaint is filed, the Trust would be seeking $139.0 million in the aggregate from director designees and
affiliates of ours. The hearing on the motion to amend the lawsuits is scheduled for September 12, 2013. Should the Bankruptcy Court grant the
motion we will assess whether an amended motion to dismiss should be filed. We have moved to dismiss the referenced actions and intend to
vigorously defend against the claims asserted therein.

We have not made a loss accrual for this litigation because we believe that it is not probable that a loss has been incurred and an amount cannot
be reasonably estimated.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors set forth in Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.

Item 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.

Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

In reviewing the agreements included as exhibits to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, please remember they are included to provide you with
information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any other factual or disclosure information about Arbor or the other parties to
the agreements. The agreements contain representations and warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement. These
representations and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement and:

¢ should not in all instances be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of the parties if those
statements prove to be inaccurate;

¢ have been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreement, which
disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the agreement;

® may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from what may be viewed as material to you or other investors; and

e were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement and are subject to
more recent developments.

Accordingly, these representations and warranties may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time.
Additional information about Arbor may be found elsewhere in this report and Arbor s other public filings, which are available without charge

through the SEC s website ahttp://www.sec.gov.

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. *
32 Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Arbor Realty Trust, Inc.
33 Articles Supplementary of Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. *
34 Articles Supplementary of 8.250% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. v
3.5 Articles Supplementary of 7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock.
3.6 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Arbor Realty Trust, Inc.
4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock. *
4.2 Common Stock Purchase Warrant, Certificate No. W-1, dated July 23, 2009, issued to Wachovia Bank, National Association. ®
4.3 Common Stock Purchase Warrant, Certificate No. W-2, dated July 23, 2009, issued to Wachovia Bank, National Association. ®
4.4 Common Stock Purchase Warrant, Certificate No. W-3, dated July 23, 2009, issued to Wachovia Bank, National Association. ®
4.5 Specimen 8.250% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock Certificate. v
4.6 Specimen 7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock Certificate.
10.1 Second Amended and Restated Management Agreement, dated August 6, 2009, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor

Commercial Mortgage, LLC, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership and Arbor Realty SR, Inc. vvv
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Services Agreement, dated July 1, 2003, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC and Arbor
Realty Limited Partnership. *

Non-Competition Agreement, dated July 1, 2003, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty Limited Partnership and
Ivan Kaufman. *

Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, dated January 18, 2005,
by and among Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, Arbor Realty LPOP, Inc. and Arbor
Realty GPOP, Inc.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 1, 2003, between Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. and Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC. *
2003 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, (as amended and restated on June 18, 2009). vvv

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement. *

Benefits Participation Agreement, dated July 1, 2003, between Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. and Arbor Management, LLC. *
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10.9
10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

Form of Indemnification Agreement. *

Amended and Restated Loan Purchase and Repurchase Agreement, dated July 12, 2004, by and among Arbor Realty Funding
LLC, as seller, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as purchaser, and Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., as guarantor. **

Indenture, dated January 19, 2005, by and between Arbor Realty Mortgage Securities Series 2004-1, Ltd., Arbor Realty
Mortgage Securities Series 2004-1 LLC, Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and LaSalle Bank National Association.

Indenture, dated January 11, 2006, by and between Arbor Realty Mortgage Securities Series 2005-1, Ltd., Arbor Realty
Mortgage Securities Series 2005-1 LLC, Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and LaSalle Bank National Association.

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of October 26, 2006, by and between Column Financial, Inc. and Arbor Realty SR, Inc.
and Arbor TRS Holding Company Inc., as sellers, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, as guarantors, and
Arbor Realty Mezzanine LLC.

Indenture, dated December 14, 2006, by and between Arbor Realty Mortgage Securities Series 2006-1, Ltd., Arbor Realty
Mortgage Securities Series 2006-1 LLC, Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. w

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2007, by and between Variable Funding Capital Company LLC, as
purchaser, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as swingline purchaser, Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC, as deal agent, Arbor
Realty Funding LLC, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership and ARSR Tahoe, LLC, as sellers, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor
Realty Limited Partnership and Arbor Realty SR, Inc., as guarantors. ww

Credit Agreement, dated November 6, 2007, by and between Arbor Realty Funding, LLC, ARSR Tahoe, LLC, Arbor Realty
Limited Partnership, and ART 450 LLC, as Borrowers, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, and Arbor
Realty SR, Inc., as Guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent. www

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated May 6, 2009, between Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, National Association, as Trustee relating to $29,400,000 aggregate principal amount of Junior Subordinated Notes
due 2034. vv

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated May 6, 2009, between Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, National Association, as Trustee relating to $168,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Junior Subordinated Notes
due 2034. vv

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated May 6, 2009, among Arbor Realty SR, Inc. Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., as Guarantor, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee, relating to $21,224,000 aggregate principal amount of Junior Subordinated Notes due
2035. vv

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated May 6, 2009, among Arbor Realty SR, Inc. Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., as Guarantor, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee, relating to $2,632,000 aggregate principal amount of Junior Subordinated Notes due
2036. vv

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated May 6, 2009, among Arbor Realty SR, Inc. Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., as Guarantor, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee, relating to $47,180,000 aggregate principal amount of Junior Subordinated Notes due
2037. vv

Exchange Agreement, dated May 6, 2009, among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty SR, Inc., Kodiak CDO II, Ltd.,
Attentus CDO I, Ltd. and Attentus CDO III, Ltd. vv

Exchange Agreement, dated May 6, 2009, among Arbor Realty SR, Inc., Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Taberna Preferred Funding
I, Ltd., Taberna Preferred Funding II, Ltd., Taberna Preferred Funding III, Ltd., Taberna Preferred Funding IV, Ltd., Taberna

Preferred Funding V, Ltd., Taberna Preferred Funding VII, Ltd. and Taberna Preferred Funding VIII, Ltd. vv

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 23, 2009, among Arbor Realty Funding, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, as a Borrower, ARSR Tahoe, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, Arbor ESH
II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership,
as a Borrower and a Guarantor, ART 450 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., a
Maryland corporation, as a Guarantor, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a Maryland corporation, as a Borrower and a Guarantor, the
several Lenders from time to time a party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as
administrative agent for the Lenders thereunder.vvv

First Amended and Restated Revolving Loan Agreement, dated as of July 23, 2009, among Arbor Realty
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10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Arbor Realty GPOP, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Arbor Realty LPOP, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a Maryland corporation,
Arbor Realty Collateral Management, LLC, as Borrowers, the several Lenders from time to time a party thereto, and Wachovia
Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as administrative agent for the Lenders thereunder and initial lender.
\A4Y

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 23, 2009, by and between Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. and Wachovia Bank,

National Association, a national banking association. ®

First Amendment to First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2009, among Arbor Realty
Funding, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, ARSR Tahoe, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
as a Borrower, Arbor ESH II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, a
Delaware limited partnership, as a Borrower and a Guarantor, ART 450 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a
Borrower, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, as a Guarantor, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a Maryland corporation, as a
Borrower and a Guarantor, the several Lenders from time to time a party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, a

national banking association, as administrative agent for the Lenders thereunder. ®

Second Amendment to First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 24, 2009, among Arbor Realty
Funding, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, ARSR Tahoe, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
as a Borrower, Arbor ESH II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, a
Delaware limited partnership, as a Borrower and a Guarantor, ART 450 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a
Borrower, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, as a Guarantor, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a Maryland corporation, as a
Borrower and a Guarantor, the several Lenders from time to time a party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, a
national banking association, as administrative agent for the Lenders and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, a national

banking association, as the custodian. ®

First Amendment to First Amended and Restated Revolving Loan Agreement, dated as of December 24, 2009, among Arbor
Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Arbor Realty GPOP, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Arbor Realty LPOP, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a Maryland
corporation, Arbor Realty Collateral Management, LLC, as Borrowers, the several Lenders from time to time a party thereto,
and Wachovia Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as administrative agent for the Lenders thereunder
and initial lender. ®

Third Amendment and Waiver to First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010, among Arbor
Realty Funding, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, ARSR Tahoe, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, as a Borrower, Arbor ESH II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Limited
Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, as a Borrower and a Guarantor, ART 450 LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, as a Guarantor, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a Maryland
corporation, as a Borrower and a Guarantor, the several Lenders from time to time a party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National

Association, a national banking association, as administrative agent for the Lenders thereunder. ®

Second Amendment and Waiver to First Amended and Restated Revolving Loan Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2010,
among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, Arbor Realty GPOP, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Arbor Realty
LPOP, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Arbor Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a
Maryland corporation, Arbor Realty Collateral Management, LLC, as Borrowers, the several Lenders from time to time a party
thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as administrative agent for the Lenders
thereunder and initial lender. ®

Fourth Amendment and Waiver to First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2010, among Arbor
Realty Funding, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, ARSR Tahoe, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, as a Borrower, Arbor ESH II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Limited
Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, as a Borrower and a Guarantor, ART 450 LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, as a Borrower, Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporation, as a Guarantor, Arbor Realty SR, Inc., a Maryland
corporation, as a Borrower and a Guarantor, the several Lenders from time to time
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a party thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as administrative agent for the
Lenders thereunder. ®
Exchange Agreement, dated as of February 26, 2010, among Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and Taberna Preferred Funding I, Ltd.,

Taberna Preferred Funding V, Ltd., Taberna Preferred Funding VII, Ltd. and Taberna Preferred Funding VIII, Ltd. ®
Revolving Bridge Loan and Security Agreement dated as of July 22, 2011, by and between Capital One, National Association as

lender and Arbor Realty SR, Inc. as borrower, and Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. as guarantor. ee
Underwriting Agreement, dated June 7, 2012, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC, Arbor

Realty Limited Partnership and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. eee

Indenture, dated September 24, 2012, by and between Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2012-1, Ltd., Arbor Realty
Collateralized Loan Obligation 2012-1, LLC, Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and U.S. Bank, National Association.

Placement Agreement, dated September 24, 2012, by and between Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2012-1, Ltd.,
Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2012-1, LLC and Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P.

Loan Obligation Purchase Agreement, dated September 24, 2012, by and between Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and Arbor Realty
Collateralized Loan Obligation 2012-1, Ltd.

Underwriting Agreement, dated October 5, 2012, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Commercial Mortgage, LLC,
Arbor Realty Limited Partnership and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.

Equity Distribution Agreement, dated December 31, 2012, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty Limited
Partnership and JMP Securities LLC.

Indenture, dated January 28, 2013, by and between Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2013-1, Ltd., Arbor Realty
Collateralized Loan Obligation 2013-1, LLC, Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association.

Placement Agreement, dated January 28, 2013, by and between Arbor Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2013-1, Ltd., Arbor
Realty Collateralized Loan Obligation 2013-1, LLC and Sandler O Neill & Partners, L.P.

Loan Obligation Purchase Agreement, dated January 28, 2013, by and between Arbor Realty SR, Inc. and Arbor Realty
Collateralized Loan Obligation 2013-1, Ltd.

Underwriting Agreement, dated January 29, 2013, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty Limited Partnership,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., JMP Securities LLC, Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc., and MLV & Co. LLC.

Underwriting Agreement, dated March 22, 2013, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty Limited Partnership and
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.

Underwriting Agreement, dated May 6, 2013, by and among Arbor Realty Trust, Inc., Arbor Realty Limited Partnership,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., JMP Securities LLC, Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc., and MLV & Co. LLC.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Financial statements from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Arbor Realty Trust, Inc. for the quarter ended June 30, 2013,
filed on August 2, 2013, formatted in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheet, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Operations,
(iii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, (v) the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-32136) which was filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 11, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration No. 333-110472), as amended. Such

registration statement was originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 13, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
2013.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

s Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004.
s Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

s Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

s Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006.
s Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007.

s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007.

s Form 8-A which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 1,

s Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

s Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant s Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Commission on June 12, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Commission on October 11, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Commission on February 1, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Commission on March 27, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant
Commission on May 9, 2013.

s Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011.

s Current Report on Form 8-K which was filed with the Securities and Exchange

s Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012.

s Current Report on Form 8-K which was filed with the Securities and Exchange

s Annual Report of Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

s Current Report on Form 8-K which was filed with the Securities and Exchange

s Current Report on Form 8-K which was filed with the Securities and Exchange

s Current Report on Form 8-K which was filed with the Securities and Exchange
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In reviewing the agreements included as exhibits to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, please remember they are included to provide you with
information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any other factual or disclosure information about Arbor or the other parties to
the agreements. The agreements contain representations and warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement. These
representations and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement and:

¢ should not in all instances be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of the parties if those
statements prove to be inaccurate;

¢ have been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreement, which
disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the agreement;

® may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from what may be viewed as material to you or other investors; and

e were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement and are subject to
more recent developments.

Accordingly, these representations and warranties may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time.
Additional information about Arbor may be found elsewhere in this report and Arbor s other public filings, which are available without charge

through the SEC s website ahttp://www.sec.gov.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized:

ARBOR REALTY TRUST, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Ivan Kaufman
Name: Ivan Kaufman

Title: Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Paul Elenio
Name: Paul Elenio

Title: Chief Financial Officer

Date: August 2, 2013
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